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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Newberry (formerly Newbury) County was one of six counties created in 1785 
from the large district of Ninety-Six. Two acres which had been part of the 
site of a British meeting prior to the Battle of Cowpens in January 1781 
were given to the new county in March of 1789 and became the basis for the 
town of Newberry. The original plat shows the creation of a public square 
bounded by present day Caldwell, Main, McKibben, and Boyce Streets. Based 
upon a simple grid system, Newberry was laid out to consist of streets 33 
feet wide and 1/4 acre plots. By 1801 a small frame courthouse had re­ 
placed the first log structure, and the village began to grow up around the 
town square. Most of the commercial and public buildings surrounding the 
square were built between 1850 and 1900 when Newberry was an important 
stop in-the;rail road route from Columbia to Greenville.

Structures on the Square include:
rn

(1) Old Courthouse (listed on the National Register): In the center of 
the public square stands the fourth of five courthouses built for Newberry 
County. Designed by Jacob Graves, it was constructed ca. 1850 of stuccoed 
brick in the Greek revival style. Six fluted Tuscan columns support a 
massive pediment that contains a Reconstruction-era bas relief. There is an 
intricate Doric entablature and a central stairway with iron railings. The 
building is surrounded by a landscaped square with carriage-type street 
lights.

(2) Confederate Memorial Monument: In the park behind the Old Courthouse 
stands a monument, unveiled in 1880, erected to area soldiers who died in 
the War Between the States. The terraces on the sides of the monument 
contain s'tohe blocks5 that were a part of the old'jail which formerly stood 
on the site.

(3) Old Newberry Bank: The first banking institution in Newberry was 
established here ca. 1852. This rectangular stuccoed building is brick with 
a stepped gable and an egg and dart motif on the cornice. The windows are 
in recessed arches, and the building which is currently used by a savings 
and loan is adjoined by a landscaped park. A columned classic revival 
structure was built in 1912 to house another financial institution. It now 
adjoins the original bank.

(4) Newberry Opera House (listed on the National Register): The Opera 
House, designed by G. L. Normann as a brick Gothic-derived structure, was 
constructed in 1882. It served for many years as the center of cultural 
and civic activities for Newberry. The ground floor is currently used as 
a city hall.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1785 Newberry County was formed from a.portion of the Ninety-Six Judicial 
District; four years later John and Henry Coates planned the town of 
Newberry. Founded on the site of a former military encampment, Newberry 
was established as a courthouse town and gradually evolved into a judicial 
and political as well as cultural center for the midwestern section of 
South Carolina. « ;n v

Architecture: The Newberry Public Square and adjoining buildings illustrate
the architectural compatibility of low profile commercial and business 
structures intermingled with prominent civic and cultural buildings.

An example is the Old Courthouse of Greek revival design which dominates 
the square architecturally and is balanced by the prominent Gothic brick 
Opera House.

The fairly narrow streets and the original quarter acre lots necessitated 
rather small scale construction, a practice which has generally been 
maintained to the present. This consistency of building size as well as 
relatively minor modern intrusions contribute to the cohesiveness of the 
area as a distinctive architectural unit.

Political: A courthouse and jail were part of the earliest construction 
in Newberry. The square served as a governmental center for the Newberry 
county seat until the fifth courthouse was constructed in 1906 several 
blocks away.

Theatre: Dedicated in 1882, the Opera House was once Newberry's cultural 
center. Traveling theatrical companies as well as local talent performed 
stage drama, operas, operettas, minstrel shows, and musical comedies.

Military: During the Revolution, forces led by the British Colonel 
Banastre Tarleton camped at the area that was later to be the settlement 
of Newberry. From here his troops moved into position for what was to be 
known as the Battle of Cowpens (January 1781) in which Tarleton was 
defeated.
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2. Location (continued)

The District includes the Public Square and the surrounding blocks with 
storefront facades. From the old Newberry Hotel on the Southeast corner 
of Main and Caldwell streets go (northwest) for one block on Caldwell 
Street, left (southwest) on Boyce Street for two blocks, left (southeast) 
for one block on McKibben Street, and left (northeast) for two blocks 
on Main Street. District also includes one block of Boyce Street from 
Caldwell'Street to College Street (northeast) and one block of Caldwell 
Street from Main to Friend Street (southeast).
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7. Description (continued) (Newberry Historic District)

(5) Old Hotel: The Newberry Hotel was opened by 1880 and is of stylized 
Romanesque revival design. The first floor is rusticated and a corner tower 
overlooks the public square. No longer used as a hotel, it now houses offices 
and business establishments.

Low profile commercial structures of one and two stories surround the public 
square. The earlier buildings date prior to the War Between the States and 
mostly have stepped gables of brick. Intricate brickwork distinguishes the 
upper facade of other structures; a number of cast iron fronts are also of 
note.
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